## **REFERENCES**

- Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR). 1999. Toxicological Profile for Hydrogen Sulfide. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Atlanta, Georgia.
- Anyon, Roger. 1995. Letter to the Editor. Society for American Archaeology Bulletin 13(5).
- Armour, C., D. Duff, and W. Elmore. 1994. The effects of livestock grazing on western riparian and stream ecosystems. *Fisheries* 19: 9-12.
- Atwood, D., J. Holland, R. Bolander, B. Franklin, D. E. House, L. Armstrong, K. Thorne, and L. England. 1991. Utah Threatened, Endangered, and Sensitive Plant Field Guide. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.
- Atwood, G., and H. H. Doelling. 1982. History of Paradox Salt Deformation. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey Notes, Volume 16, No. 2. Utah Geological Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Bearnson, Margaret S. 1994. Moab [online publication]. Utah History Encyclopedia, University of Utah Press. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://www.media.utah.edu/UHE/m/MOAB.html.
- Belsky, A. Joy, and Dana M. Blumenthal. 1997. Effects of livestock grazing on stand dynamics and soils in upland forests of the Interior West. *Conservation Biology* 11(2):315-327.
- Bon, R. L., and Sharon Wakefield. 2002a. Map of large mine permits in Utah, 2002. In Utah Geological Survey Open File Report 398, 3 p., 1 pl. Approximate scale 1" = 14 miles.
- Bon, R. L., and Sharon Wakefield. 2002b. Map of small mine permits in Utah, 2002. In Utah Geological Survey Open File Report 405, 7 p., 1 pl. Approximate scale 1:750,000.
- Brown, P. E. 1996. A survey for bats of the Soledad Mountain project, Mojave, Kern County, California [online publication]. Bureau of Land Management, California State Office, Sacramento. [Accessed April 13, 2005]. Available at http://www.ca.blm.gov/GoldenQueen/pub-biob.htm.
- Brugge, D. 1983. Navajo Prehistory and History to 1850. In *Southwest*, edited by A. Ortiz, pp. 489-501. Handbook of North American Indians, Vol. 10, W. Sturtevant, general ed. Smithsonian Institute, Washington, D.C.
- Buckles, W. 1971. The Uncompander Complex: Historic Ute Archaeology and Prehistoric Archaeology of the Uncompander Plateau, West Central Colorado. PhD dissertation, Department of Anthropology, University of Colorado. University Microfilms, Ann Arbor.
- Buechner, H. K. 1960. The bighorn sheep in the United States: Its past, present and future. Wildlife Monograph 4. The Wildlife Society, Washington, D.C.

Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA). 2005. Regional Economic Accounts [online database]. Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce. [Accessed December 21, 2005]. Available at http://www.bea.gov/bea/regional/definitions/nextpage.cfm?key= Per%20capita%20personal%20income.

- Bureau of Land Management (BLM). 1979. Desolation and Gray Canyons of the Green River Management Plan [online publication]. Bureau of Land Management, Price River Resource Area, Moab District, Moab, Utah. [Last Accessed June 15, 2007]. Available at http://www.ut.blm.gov/planning/OTHERS/DESOGRP%20JUNE%201979.PDF.
- BLM. 1982. Management Situation Analysis for the Grand Resource Area. Bureau of Land Management, Grand Resource Area, Moab District, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 1985a. Grand Resource Area Resource Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab District, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 1985b. Final Environmental Impact Statement on the Book Cliffs Resource Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Vernal District, Vernal, Utah. July.
- BLM. 1985c. Grand Junction Resource Area Resource Management Plan and Final Environmental Impact Statement. Bureau of Land Management, Grand Junction District, Grand Junction, Colorado.
- BLM. 1985d. San Juan/San Miguel Resource Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Montrose District, Montrose, Colorado.
- BLM. 1985e. Energy and Mineral Resources Assessment. Rel. 3-115. BLM Manual 3031. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C. June 19.
- BLM. 1986a. Statewide Desert Bighorn Sheep Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.
- BLM. 1986b. Visual Resource Contrast Rating. BLM Handbook H-8431-1. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- BLM. 1987. Uncompanyere Basin Resource Management Plan and Final Environmental Impact Statement. Bureau of Land Management, Uncompanyere District, Montrose, Colorado.
- BLM. 1989a. San Rafael Resource Management Plan/Final Environmental Impact Statement. Bureau of Land Management, San Rafael District, Price, Utah. July.
- BLM. 1989b. Planning Criteria for Land Tenure Adjustments, Exchanges, Acquisitions, and Disposals: An Amendment to the 1985 Grand Resource Area Resource Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management. Moab District, Moab, Utah. February.
- BLM. 1990. Utah BLM Statewide Wilderness Environmental Impact Statement. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.
- BLM. 1991a. Final Environmental Impact Statement: Vegetation Treatment on BLM Lands in Thirteen Western States. BLM-WY-91-022-4320. Bureau of Land Management, Wyoming State Office, Cheyenne. May.

BLM. 1991b. Riparian-Wetland Initiative for the 1990s. BLM/WO/GI-91/001+4340. Bureau of Land Management, Denver, Colorado.

- BLM. 1991c. Utah Statewide Wilderness Study Report. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City. October.
- BLM. 1992a. Environmental Assessment: Utah's Colorado Riverway Recreation Area Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 1992b. Visual Resource Management. BLM Manual 8400. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- BLM. 1993a. Diamond Mountain Resource Area Resource Management Plan and Environmental Impact Statement. Bureau of Land Management, Vernal District, Vernal, Utah. March.
- BLM. 1993b. Bighorn Sheep Rangeland Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 1993c. Process for Assessing Proper Functioning Condition. TR-1737-9. Bureau of Land Management, Proper Functioning Condition Work Group, Denver.
- BLM. 1993d. Greater Sagers Wash Watershed Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 1994a. Sand Flats Recreation Area Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 1994b. Mineral Reports, Preparation and Review. Rel. 3-284. BLM Manual 3060. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- BLM. 1995. Interim Management Policy for Lands Under Wilderness Review. BLM Handbook H-8550-1. Bureau of Land Management, California State Office, Sacramento.
- BLM. 1997a. Standards for Rangeland Health and Guidelines for Grazing Management of BLM Lands in Utah. BLM-UT-GI-97-001-4000. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City. May.
- BLM. 1997b. Environmental Impact Statement for Lisbon Valley Copper Project, San Juan County, Utah. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 1998a. Revised Guidelines for Domestic Sheep and Goat Management in Native Wild Sheep Habitats. Instruction Memorandum No. 98-140. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- BLM. 1998b. General Procedural Guidance for Paleontological Resource Management. BLM Handbook H-8270-1. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- BLM. 1998c. A User Guide to Assessing Proper Functioning Condition and the Supporting Science for Lotic Areas. TR-1737-15. Bureau of Land Management, Proper Functioning Condition Work Group, Denver.
- BLM. 1999. Utah Wilderness Inventory. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.

BLM. 2000. Soils Suitability Extension (SSE), v1.0. An ArcView tool developed by the BLM for the management of soils. Bureau of Land Management, National Science and Technology Center, Denver.

- BLM. 2001a. Colorado Riverway Special Recreation Area Management Plan Amendment. EA # UT-062-99-151. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2001b. Mill Creek Canyon Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2001c. Questar, Williams and Kern River Pipeline Draft Environmental Impact Statement. State # 01-533. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.
- BLM. 2001d. Biological Soil Crusts: Ecology and Management. TR 1730-2. Bureau of Land Management, National Science and Technology Center, Denver.
- BLM. 2002a. Preparation Plan for the Moab Field Office Resource Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2002b. Standards for Public Land Health and Guidelines for Recreation Management for BLM Lands in Utah [online publication]. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 15, 2007]. Available at http://www.ut.blm.gov/Recreation/recstandards.html.
- BLM. 2002c. Environmental Justice. Instruction Memorandum No. 2002-164. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C. May.
- BLM. 2002d. Draft BLM Sensitive Plant Species List. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.
- BLM. 2002e. Forest and Woodland Management Action Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2003a. Resource Management Plan and Environmental Impact Statement for the Colorado Canyons National Conservation Area and Black Ridge Canyons Wilderness. Bureau of Land Management, Grand Junction Field Office, Grand Junction, Colorado.
- BLM. 2003b. Canyon Rims Recreation Area Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2003c. Moab Field Office Visual Resource Inventory Map. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2003d. Socioeconomic Profile Pinedale. Bureau of Land Management, Pinedale Field Office, Pinedale, Wyoming. January.
- BLM. 2003e. Native American Coordination and Consultation. BLM Manual 8160. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- BLM. 2003f. General Procedural Guidance for Native American Consultation. BLM Handbook H-8160-1. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.

BLM. 2004a. Moab Field Office Land Ownership (Memorandum). Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.

- BLM. 2004b. Three Rivers Withdrawal. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah and Price Field Office, Price, Utah.
- BLM. 2004c. National Sage-grouse Habitat Conservation Strategy. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C. November.
- BLM. 2004d. Moab Field Office Analysis of Management Situation. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2004e. Moab Field Office Social and Economic Baseline Study. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah. April.
- BLM. 2004f. Relevance and Importance Evaluations of Area of Critical Environmental Concern (ACEC) Nominations. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2004g. Wild and Scenic Rivers Review Eligibility Determination, Moab Field Office. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2004h. Email of development scenario questionnaire (developed by BLM NSTC-AQ staff), from Dave Moore, BLM, Vernal Field Office, to Craig Nicholls, BLM, April 12.
- BLM. 2005a. Land Use Planning Handbook. BLM Handbook H-1601-1. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- BLM. 2005b. Cameo Cliffs Special Recreation Management Area Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2005c. Utah Land Use Plan Amendment for Fire and Fuels Management, September. UT-USO-04-01 [online publication]. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 15, 2007]. Available at <a href="http://www.ut.blm.gov/fireplanning/LUPEAFire92605FINAL.pdf">http://www.ut.blm.gov/fireplanning/LUPEAFire92605FINAL.pdf</a>
- BLM. 2005d. Final Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement for Implementation of a Wind Energy Development Program and Associated Land Use Plan Amendments. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C. June.
- BLM. 2005e. Mineral Potential Report for the Moab Planning Area, Grand and San Juan Counties, Utah. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah. August.
- BLM. 2005f. Reasonable Foreseeable Development Scenario for Oil and Gas. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2005g. Land and Mineral Records LR2000 System Data [online database]. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C. [Accessed January 15, 2005]. http://www.blm.gov/lr2000/.
- BLM. 2005h. The Ancestral Pueblos (Anasazi) [website]. Anasazi Heritage Center, Bureau of Land Management, Colorado State Office. [Accessed December 14, 2005]. Available at http://www.co.blm.gov/ahc/anasazi.htm#Who.

BLM. 2005i. Summary Data for Bureau of Land Management. Appendix D in Recreational Fee Demonstration Program Annual Report, FY 2003. Department of the Interior and Department of Agriculture, Washington, D.C.

- BLM. 2006a. Normal Year Fire Rehabilitation and Stabilization Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM. 2006b. Moab Fire District Fire Management Plan. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- BLM 2007. Final Vegetation Treatments on BLM Lands in 17 Western States Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement and Associated Record of Decision. USDI BLM. FES 07-21.
- BLM 2007b. Final Vegetation Treatments on BLM Lands in 17 Western States Programmatic Environmental Report. USDI BLM. FES 0721.
- BLM 2007a. Northeast National Petroleum Reserve Alaska Draft Supplemental Integrated Activity Plan/Environmental Impact Statement. USDOI BLM, August 2007. Available at: http://www.blm.gov/ak/st/en/prog/planning/npra\_general/ne\_npra/ne\_npra\_supplement.html.
- Butler, B. S., G. F. Loughlin, V. C. Heikes, and others. 1920. The Ore Deposits of Utah. U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 111. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- Chaneton, E. J., and R. S. Lavado. 1996. Soil nutrients and salinity after long-term grazing exclusions in a Flooding Pampa grassland. *Journal of Rangeland Management* 49(2):182-187.
- Chatman, M. L. 1987. Mineral Resources of the Black Ridge Canyons (CO-070-113), Black Ridge Canyons West (CO-070-113A/UT-060-1166/117), and Westwater Canyon (UT-060-118) Wilderness Study Areas, Mesa County, Colorado, and Grand County, Utah. U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-File Report MLA 44-87. U.S. Bureau of Mines, Washington, D.C.
- Chenoweth, W. L. 1981. The Uranium and Vanadium Deposits of the Uravan Mineral Belt and Adjacent Areas, Colorado and Utah. New Mexico Geological Society Thirty-second Field Conference. New Mexico Geological Society, Socorro.
- Chenoweth, W. L. 1989. Uranium Deposits of the Canyonlands Area. Four Corners Geological Society Guidebook, Eighth Field Conference. Four Corners Geological Society, Durango, Colorado.
- Chenoweth, W. L. 1996. The Uranium Industry in the Paradox Basin. In Geology and Resources of the Paradox Basin 1996 Special Symposium: Utah Geological Association and Four Corners Geological Society Guidebook 25, edited by A. C. Huffman, Jr., W. R. Lund, and L. H. Godwin, pp. 95-108. Utah Geological Association and Four Corners Geological Society.
- Clark, W. D., and J. R. Karr. 1979. Effects of highways on red-winged blackbird and horned lark populations. *Wilson Bulletin* 91: 143-145.

Connelly, John W., Michael A. Schroeder, Alan R. Sands, and Clait E. Braun. 2000. Guidelines to Manage Sage Grouse Populations and Their Habitats. *Wildlife Society Bulletin* 28(4): 967–985.

- Connelly, John W., Steven T. Knick, Michael A. Schroeder, and San J. Stiver. 2004. Conservation Assessment of Greater Sage-grouse and Sagebrush Habitats. Western Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies, Cheyenne, Wyoming.
- Constellation Copper Corporation (Constellation Copper). 2006. News Releases [internet website]. Constellation Copper Corporation. [Accessed March 2006]. Available at http://www.summominerals.com/press.html.
- Cowardin, L. W., V. Carter, F. C. Golet, and E. T. LaRoe. 1979. Classification of Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the United States. FWS/OBS-79/31. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Office of Biological Services, Washington, D.C.
- Crawford, J. A., R. A. Olson, N. E. West, J. C. Mosley, M. A. Schroeder, T. D. Whitson, R. F. Miller, M. A. Gregg, and C. S. Boyd. 2004. Ecology and management of sage-grouse and sage-grouse habitat. *Journal of Rangeland Management* 57(1): 2-19.
- CRCT Task Force. 2001. Conservation agreement and strategy for Colorado River cutthroat trout (*Oncorhynchus clarki pleuriticus*) in the States of Colorado, Utah, and Wyoming. Colorado Division of Wildlife, Fort Collins.
- Dames & Moore. 1978. Inventory and market analysis of the potash resources of the Paradox Basin. Job No. 08699-011. Prepared by Dames & Moore, Salt Lake City. Prepared for Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.
- Dane, C. H. 1935. Geology of the Salt Valley Anticline and Adjacent Areas, Grand County, Utah. U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 863. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- Department of Energy (DOE). 2003. Assessing the Potential for Renewable Energy on Public Lands. Department of Energy, Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy, and Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.
- DOE. 2005. Remediation of the Moab Uranium Mill Tailings, Grand and San Juan Counties, Utah, Final Environmental Impact Statement. DOE/EIS-0355. Department of Energy, Office of Environmental Management, Grand Junction, Colorado.
- Department of Energy and Bureau of Land Management (DOE and BLM). 2006. West-wide Energy Corridor Programmatic EIS Information Center: "Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement for Designation of Energy Corridors on Federal Land in 11 Western States." DOE/EIS-0386 [internet website]. Department of Energy and Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C. [Last Accessed June 15, 2007]. Available at http://corridoreis.anl.gov/index.cfm.
- Desert Bighorn Council Technical Staff. 1990. Guidelines for management of domestic sheep in the vicinity of desert bighorn habitat. *Desert Bighorn Council Transactions* 34:33-35.

Doelling, H. H. 1972a. Sego coal field. In *Eastern and Northern Utah Coal Fields*, compiled by H. H. Doelling and R. L. Graham, pp. 191-267. Utah Geological and Mineralogical Survey Monograph Series No. 2. Utah Geological and Mineralogical Survey, Salt Lake City.

- Doelling, H. H. 1972b. La Sal-San Juan coal fields. In *Eastern and Northern Utah Coal Fields*, compiled by H. H. Doelling and R. L. Graham, pp. 269-280. Utah Geological and Mineralogical Survey Monograph Series No. 2. Utah Geological and Mineralogical Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Doelling, H. H. 2002. Geologic map of the Moab and Eastern Part of San Rafael Desert 30' × 60' Quadrangle, Grand and Emery Counties, Utah, and Mesa County, Colorado. Utah Geological Survey Map 180. 3 sheets (scale 1:100,000).
- Doelling, H. H. 2004. Geologic map of the La Sal 30' × 60' Quadrangle, San Juan, Wayne and Garfield Counties, Utah, and Montrose and San Miguel Counties, Colorado. Utah Geological Survey Map 205. 2 sheets (scale 1:100,000).
- Doelling, H. H., A. D. Smith, F. D. Davis, and D. L. Hayhurst. 1979. Methane Content of Utah Coals. In *Coal Studies*, edited by Martha Smith, pp. 1-43. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey Special Studies 49. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Doelling, H. H., C. G. Oviatt, and P. W. Huntoon. 1988. Salt Deformation in the Paradox Region. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey Bulletin 122. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Draxler, R. R., and G. D. Hess. 1998. An overview of the HYSPLIT-4 modeling system for trajectories, dispersion and deposition. *Australian Meteorological Magazine* 47(4): 295–308.
- Eckels, M. T., D. H. Suek, and P. J. Harrison. 2005. New, old plays in southern Uinta basin get fresh look with 3D seismic technology. *Oil and Gas Journal* 103(11):32-40.
- Edwards, T. C., Jr., C. G. Homer, S. D. Bassett, A. Falconer, R. D. Ramsey, and D. W. Wight. 1995. Utah Gap Analysis: An Environmental Information System. Final Project Report 95-1. Utah Cooperative Fish and Wildlife Research Unit, Utah State University, Logan.
- Eisinger, C., and C. Lowe. 1999. A Summary of the Ground Water Resources and Geohydrology of Grand County, Utah. Utah Geological Survey Circular. Utah Geological Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Elevatorski, E. A. 1978. Uranium Guidebook for the Paradox Basin, Utah-Colorado. Dana Point, California: Minobras.
- Ellis, M. S., and J. T. Hopeck. 1985. Geologic map showing coal beds in the Dakota Sandstone, Harley Dome quadrangle and parts of the Bitter Creek Well, Westwater 4 SE, and Westwater 4 SW quadrangles, Colorado and Utah. U.S. Geological Survey Miscellaneous Field Studies Map MF-1800. Approximate scale 1:50,000.
- Energy Information Administration (EIA). 2007. Official Energy Statistics from the U.S. Government [internet database]. Energy Information Administration, Washington, D.C. [Accessed February 2, 2007]. Available at http://www.eia.doe.gov/.

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 2001. Visibility in Mandatory Federal Class I Areas (1994-1998). Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, Research Triangle Park, North Carolina.

- EPA. 2003a. Nonattainment Area Map [online database]. AIRData Homepage, Environmental Protection Agency. [Accessed April 11, 2003]. Available at http://www.epa.gov/air/data/nonat.html.
- EPA. 2003b. Monitoring Values Report [online database]. AIRData Homepage, Environmental Protection Agency. [Accessed July 2, 2003]. Available at http://www.epa.gov/air/data/monvals.html.
- EPA. 2003c. Visibility in our Nation's Parks and Wilderness Areas [internet website]. Visibility Homepage, Environmental Protection Agency. [Accessed May 22, 2008]. Available at http://www.epa.gov/oar/visibility/monitor.html.
- EPA. 2003d. Designated Sole Source Aquifers in Region VIII [online publication]. Environmental Protection Agency. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://www.epa.gov/safewater/sourcewater/pubs/qrg\_ssamap\_reg8.pdf.
- EPA. 2003e. STORET Legacy Data Center [online database]. Environmental Protection Agency. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://www.epa.gov/storpubl/legacy/gateway.htm.
- EPA. 2003f. Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) [online database]. Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, Research Triangle Park, North Carolina. [Accessed April 16, 2006]. Available at http://www.epa.gov/iris/index.html.
- EPA. 2006. Chapter 1: External Combustion Sources, and Chapter 13: Miscellaneous Sources. In *Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Factors, Volume I: Stationary Point and Area Sources AP-42*, Fifth Edition. Research Triangle Park, North Carolina. December.
- EPA. 2008. Emissions Factors & AP 42. Technology Transfer Network Clearinghouse for Inventories & Emissions Factors. Available at: www.epa.gov/ttn/chief/ap42/.
- Ferguson, T. J. 1997. Hopi Reconnaissance of the Carlota Copper Project: Ethnohistoric Overview and Cultural Concerns. Available at SWCA Environmental Consultants, Tucson, Arizona.
- Ferguson, T. J., Kurt Dongoske, Leigh Jenkins, Mike Yeatts, and Eric Polingyouma. 1993. Working Together: The Roles of Archaeology and Ethnohistory in Hopi Cultural Preservation. *CRM* 16: 27-37.
- Fitzgerald, J. P., C. A. Meaney, and D. M. Armstrong. 1994. *Mammals of Colorado*. Niwot: Denver Museum of Natural History and University Press of Colorado.
- Fleischner, Thomas L. 1994. Ecological costs of livestock grazing in western North America. *Conservation Biology* 8(3): 629-644.

Fletcher, J. L. 1980. Effects of noise on wildlife: a review of relevant literature 1971-1978. In *Proceedings of the Third International Congress on Noise as a Public Health Problem*, edited by J. V. Tobias, G. Jansen, and W. D. Ward, 611-620. American Speech-Language-Hearing Association, Rockville, Maryland.

- Fletcher, J. L. 1990. Review of noise and terrestrial species: 1983-1988. In *Noise as a Public Health Problem Vol. 5: New Advances in Noise Research Part II*, edited by B. Berglund and T. Lindvall, 181-188. Swedish Council for Building Research, Stockholm.
- Foreyt, W. J., and D. A. Jessup. 1982. Fatal pneumonia of bighorn sheep following association with domestic sheep. *Journal of Wildlife Disease* 18(2):163–168.
- Forman, R. T. T., and L. E. Alexander. 1998. Roads and their major ecological effects. *Annual Review of Ecology and Systematics* 29:207-231.
- Frid, A., and L. M. Dill. 2002. Human-caused disturbance stimuli as a form of predation risk. *Conservation Ecology* 6(1): 11.
- Frison, G. 1978. Prehistoric Hunters of the High Plains. New York: Academic Press.
- Galindo-Bect, M. S., and Glenn, E. P. 1999. Panaeid shrimp landing in the upper Gulf of California in relation to Colorado River freshwater discharge. *Fishery Bulletin* 98(1): 222-225.
- Gautier, D. L., G. L. Dolton, K. I. Takahashi, and K. L. Varnes. 1996. 1995 National Assessment of the United States Oil and Gas Resources Results, Methodology, and Supporting Data. U.S. Geological Survey Digital Data Series DDS-30, release 2. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- Gelbard, Jonathan L., and Jayne Belnap. 2003. Roads as conduits for exotic plant invasions in a semiarid landscape. *Conservation Biology* 17(2):420–432.
- Gleason, R. S., and D. R. Johnson. 1985. Factors influencing nesting success of Burrowing Owls in southeastern Idaho. *Great Basin Naturalist* 45:81-84.
- Gloyn, R. W. 2004. Uranium Potential in Utah. Unpublished report. Utah Geological Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Gloyn, R. W., C. D. Morgan, D. E. Tabet, R. E. Blackett, B. T. Tripp, and M. Lowe. 1995. Mineral, Energy, and Ground Water Resources of San Juan County, Utah. Geological Survey Special Study 86. Utah Geological Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Goddard Institute for Space Studies. 2007. Annual Mean Temperature Change for Three Latitude Bands. Datasets and Images. GISS Surface Temperature Analysis, Analysis Graphs and Plots. New York, New York. Available on the Internet: http://data.giss.nasa.gov/gistemp/graphs/Fig.B.lrg.gif.
- Goldhor-Wilcock, A., and B. Stevens. 2003. Economic Impact of Public Land Recreation and Tourism on Moab City and Grand County, Utah. Bureau of Land Management, Washington, D.C.

Grand County. 2004. Grand County General Plan Update. Prepared by Grand County, Moab, Utah.

- Grandison, K. W. 2004. Monitoring the effectiveness of bat compatible gates in the Silver Reef, East Reef and Tushar Mountain mining districts in southwestern Utah [online publication]. Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 20, 2007]. Available at http://www.blm.gov/aml/pdfs/BLM2004SummaryReportUtahBat.pdf.
- Gualtieri, J. L. 2004. Geologic map of the Westwater 30' × 60' Quadrangle, Grand and Uintah Counties, Utah, and Garfield and Mesa Counties, Colorado. Utah Geological Survey Open File Report 441DM. 4 sheets (scale 1:100,000).
- Gunnison Sage-grouse Rangewide Steering Committee (GSRSC). 2005. Gunnison Sage-grouse Rangewide Conservation Plan. Colorado Division of Wildlife, Denver. April.
- Hahn, Gregory, and Jon P. Thorson. 2002. Geology of the Lisbon Valley Sandstone-hosted Disseminated Copper Deposits, San Juan County, Utah. Unpublished manuscript. Available at Society of Economic Geologists, Littleton, Colorado.
- Hart, C. M., M. R. Gonzalez, E. P. Simpson, and S. H. Hurlbert. 1998. Salinity and fish effects on Salton Sea microecosystems: Zooplankton and nekton. *Hydrobiologia* 381: 129-152.
- Hart, E. Richard. 1993. The Fence Lake Mine Project: Archaeology as Traditional Cultural Property. *CRM* 16:38-41.
- Haug, E. A., B. A. Millsap, and M. S. Martell. 1993. Burrowing Owl (*Speotyto cunicularia*). In *The Birds of North America*, No. 61, edited by A. Poole and F. Gill. Philadelphia: The Academy of Natural Sciences, and Washington, D.C.: The American Ornithologists' Union.
- Hayden, M. 2003. UGS paleontology locality search for Grand County. Utah Geological Society, Salt Lake City.
- Hite, R. J. 1960. Stratigraphy of the saline facies of the Paradox Member of the Hermosa Formation of southeastern Utah and southwestern Colorado. In *Geology of the Paradox Fold and Fault Belt*, Four Corners Geological Society Guidebook, Third Field Conference, pp. 86-89. Four Corners Geological Society, Durango, Colorado.
- Holmer, R. 1978. A Mathematical Typology for Archaic Projectile Points of the Eastern Great Basin. Unpublished PhD dissertation, Department of Anthropology, University of Utah, Salt Lake City.
- Holzworth, G. C. 1972. Mixing Heights, Wind Speeds, and Potential for Urban Air Pollution Throughout the Contiguous United States. Office of Air Programs AP-10, Environmental Protection Agency, Research Triangle Park, North Carolina.
- Hopi Cultural Preservation Office. 1995. Definition and Application of the TCP Concept for the Hopi Tribe. Available at Hopi Cultural Preservation Office, Kykotsmovi, Arizona.
- Horn, Jonathan C., Alan D. Reed, and Susan M. Chandler. 1994. Grand Resource Area Class I Cultural Resource Inventory. Alpine Archaeological Consultants, Montrose, Colorado.

Huffman, A. Curtis, Jr. 1996a. Paradox Basin Province (021). In 1995 National Assessment of United States Oil and Gas Resources—Results, Methodology, and Supporting Data, edited by D. L. Gautier, G. L. Dolton, K. I. Takahashi and K. L. Vranes. U.S. Geological Survey Digital Data Series DDS-30. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.

- Huffman, A. Curtis, Jr. 1996b. Paradox Basin Province (021). In 1996 Digital Map Data, Text, and Graphical Images in Support of the 1995 National Assessment of United States Oil and Gas Resources, compiled by W. R. Beeman, R. C. Obuch, and J. D. Brewton. U.S. Geological Survey Digital Data Series DDS-35. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- Humane Society of the United States (HSUS). 2006. Wildlife Crossings—Wild Animals and Roads [internet website]. Humane Society of the United States, Washington, D.C. [Last Accessed June 20, 2007]. Available at http://www.hsus.org/wildlife/issues\_facing\_wildlife/wildlife\_crossings\_wild\_animals\_and\_roads/.
- IMPROVE. 2002. IMPROVE Optical Data Webpage [online database]. National Park Service and Colorado State University, Cooperative Institute for Research in the Atmosphere, Fort Collins, Colorado. [Last Accessed June 20, 2007]. Available at http://vista.cira.colostate.edu/improve/Data/IMPROVE/Data\_IMPOptical.htm.
- Institute for Outdoor Recreation and Tourism (IORT). 2001. Utah River Study Results Report: Recreational Use, Value, and Experience of Boaters on Rivers Managed by the BLM in Utah. Institute for Outdoor Recreation and Tourism, Utah State University, Logan.
- Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). 2007. Climate Change 2007: The Physical Basis (Summary for Policymakers). Cambridge University Press. Cambridge, England and New York, New York. Available at: http://www.ipcc.ch/pdf/assessment-report/ar4/wg1/ar4-wg1-spm.pdf.
- IORT. 2002. Slickrock Trail Mountain Bike Survey: Implications for Resource Managers and Area Communities. No. NR/RF/012. Institute for Outdoor Recreation and Tourism, Utah State University Extension, Moab.
- Jackson, A. Lynn. 1983. Humates and their Development at Harley Dome: Utah, Grand Junction. In *Geological Society 1983 Field Trip*, pp. 17-19. Utah Geological Society, Salt Lake City.
- Jackson, Lynn. 2003. Mancos Shale Dust Research Final Report. Document provided in an email to Yu Shan Huang, Trinity Consultants, on October 21, 2003. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- Jackson, M. K. 2000. Mineral Potential Report for the Shafer Canyon Wilderness Inventory Area. Bureau of Land Management, Moab Field Office, Moab, Utah.
- Jacobsen, S. L. 2005. Mitigation Measures for Highway-caused Impacts to Birds. General Technical Report PSW-GTR-191. USDA Forest Service, Washington, D.C.
- Jessup, D. A. 1985. Diseases of domestic livestock which threaten bighorn sheep populations. *Desert Bighorn Council Transactions* 29:29-30.

Johnson, E. A. 2003. Geologic Assessment of the Phosphoria Total Petroleum System, Uinta-Piceance Province, Utah and Colorado. Chapter 9 in *Petroleum Systems and Geologic Assessment of Oil and Gas in the Uinta-Piceance Province, Utah and Colorado*, compiled by USGS Uinta-Piceance Assessment Team. U.S. Geological Survey Digital Data Series DDS-69-B. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.

- Johnson, H. S., and William Thordarson. 1959. The Elk Ridge-White Canyon Channel System, San Juan County, Utah: Its Effects on Uranium Distribution. *Economic Geology* 54:119-129.
- Johnson, M. G. 1973. Placer Gold Deposits of Utah. U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1357. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- Katzenstein, A. S., L. A. Doezema, I. J. Simpson, D. R. Blake, and F. S. Rowland. 2003. Extensive regional atmospheric hydrocarbon pollution in the southwestern United States. *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences* 100(21):11975–11979.
- Kauffman, J. D., W. C. Krueger, and M. Vavra. 1983. Effects of cattle grazing on riparian plant communities. *Journal of Rangeland Management* 36:683-685.
- Konrad, P. M., and D. S. Gilmer 1984. Observations on the nesting ecology of Burrowing Owls in central North Dakota. *Prairie Naturalist* 16:129-30.
- Kufeld, R. C. 1973. Foods eaten by the Rocky Mountain elk. *Journal of Rangeland Management* 26:106-113.
- Laronne, J. B. 1977. Dissolution Potential of Surficial Mancos Shale and Alluvium. Unpublished PhD dissertation, Colorado State University, Fort Collins.
- Lentsch, L., and Y. Converse. 1997. Conservation Agreement and Strategy for Colorado River Cutthroat Trout (*Oncorhynchus clarki pleuriticus*) in the State of Utah. Publication Number 97-20. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- Leonard, S., G. Staidl, J. Fogg, K. Gebhardt, W. Hagenbuck, and D. Prichard. 1992. Riparian Area Management: Procedures for Ecological Site Inventory with Special Reference to Riparian-wetland Sites. BLM/SC/PT-92/004. Bureau of Land Management, Service Center, Denver, Colorado.
- Lewis, C. E., and T. J. Harshbarger. 1976. Shrub and herbaceous vegetation after 20 years of prescribed burning in the South Carolina Coastal Plain. *Journal of Rangeland Management* 29:13-18.
- Lloyd Levy Consulting. 2004. Job Generation in the Colorado Mountain Resort Economy: Second Homes and Other Economic Drivers in Eagle, Grand, Pitkin, and Summit Counties. Lloyd Levy Consulting, Denver, Colorado.
- Lowry Jr., J. H., R. D. Ramsey, K. Boykin, D. Bradford, P. Comer, S. Falzarano, W. Kepner, J. Kirby, L. Langs, J. Prior-Magee, G. Manis, L. O'Brien, T. Sajwaj, K. A. Thomas, W. Rieth, S. Schrader, D. Schrupp, K. Schulz, B. Thompson, C. Velasquez, C. Wallace, E. Waller and B. Wolk. 2005. Southwest Regional Gap Analysis Project: Final Report on Land Cover Mapping Methods. RS/GIS Laboratory, Utah State University, Logan.

Lyon, L. J. 1983. Road density models describing habitat effectiveness for elk. *Journal of Forestry* 81:592-596.

- MacMahon, J. A. 1988. Introduction to Vegetation of Utah. In *Atlas of the Vascular Plants of Utah*, edited by B. J. Albee, L. M. Shultz, and S. Goodrich. Occasional Publication No. 7. Salt Lake City: Utah Museum of Natural History.
- Madsen, R. 1977. Prehistoric Ceramics of the Fremont. Museum of Northern Arizona Ceramic Series No. 6. Museum of Northern Arizona, Flagstaff.
- Martinsen, W., D. Paul, J. McCreary, F. P. Howe, T. Aldrich, J. R. Parrish, R. Berger, R. Player, S. Hedges, T. Wallace, J. Tuey, and D. Fagan. 2005. Coordinated Implementation Plan for Bird Conservation in Utah, Version 1.0. Utah Steering Committee, Intermountain West Joint Venture, Missoula, Montana.
- McFaul, E. J., G. T. Mason Jr., W. B. Ferguson, and B. R. Lipin. 2000. U.S. Geological Survey Mineral Databases—MRDS and MAS/MILS, U.S. Geological Survey Digital Data Series DDS-52, 2 disks. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- McMurtrie, Deborah. 2002. Emission inventory data provided to Yu Shan Huang, Trinity Consultants, in a March 28 email. Utah Department of Environmental Quality, Salt Lake City. Forwarded by Teri Bateman, Utah Department of Environmental Quality, Salt Lake City.
- Merrell, H. W. 1979. Mineral Resource Inventory of the Paradox Salt Basin, Utah and Colorado. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey Report of Investigation No. 143. Utah Geological Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Molenaar, Molly R. 2003a. Utah Department of Transportation Highway 6 Improvement Project: Native American Consultation and the Identification of Traditional Cultural Properties. SWCA Environmental Consultants, Salt Lake City.
- Molenaar. 2003b. Stone Cabin 3D Seismic Survey Project: Native American Consultation and the Identification of Traditional Cultural Places. Prepared for Bill Barrett Corporation, Denver, Colorado. Submitted to Bureau of Land Management, Price Field Office, Price, Utah.
- Molenaar. 2003c. Native American Ethnographic Survey: Price and Vernal Resource Management Plans. SWCA Environmental Consultants, Salt Lake City.
- Monsen, Stephen B., Richard Stevens, and Nancy L. Shaw (compilers). 2004. Restoring Western Ranges and Wildlands. General Technical Report RMRS-GTR-136-VOL-1. USDA Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station, Fort Collins, Colorado.
- Morgan, C. D. 1993. Paradox Basin Plays Overview. In *New Mexico Bureau of Mines and Mineral Resources Atlas of Major Rocky Mountain Gas Reservoirs*, pp. 90-94. New Mexico Bureau of Mines and Mineral Resources, Santa Fe.
- Morrow, L. A., and P. W. Stahlman. 1984. The history and distribution of downy brome in North America. *Weed Science Supplement* 32:2-6.

National Academy of Sciences. 2006. Understanding and Responding to Climate Change: Highlights of National Academies Reports. Division on Earth and Life Studies. National Academy of Sciences. Washington, D.C. Available at: http://dels.nas.edu/basc/Climate-HIGH.pdf.

- National Climatic Data Center (NCDC). 2004. Climate date for Utah [online database]. National Climatic Data Center, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Association. [Last Accessed June 20, 2007]. Available at http://lwf.ncdc.noaa.gov/oa/climate/research/cag3/city.html.
- National Park Service (NPS). 1974. Canyonlands National Park General Management Plan. National Park Service, Canyonlands National Park, Moab, Utah.
- NPS. 1979. Wild and Scenic River Study Final Environmental Statement, Colorado and Lower Dolores Wild and Scenic Rivers. National Park Service, Denver Service Center, Denver, Colorado. September.
- NPS. 1989. General Management Plan, Development Concept Plan: Arches National Park, Utah. National Park Service, Arches National Park, Moab, Utah.
- NPS. 1995. Canyonlands National Park and Orange Cliffs Unit of Glen Canyon National Recreation Area Backcountry Management Plan. National Park Service, Canyonlands National Park, Moab, Utah.
- NPS. 2003. Canyonlands National Park Long-range Interpretive Plan. National Park Service, Canyonlands National Park, Moab, Utah.
- NPS. 2006. Superintendent's Orders Established for Canyonlands National Park. Compendium on 36 CFR 1.7(b). National Park Service, Canyonlands National Park, Moab, Utah.
- Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 1981. Soil Survey of Grand County, Utah. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, Washington, D.C.
- NRCS. 1989. Grand Area Soil Survey Central Part. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, Washington, D.C.
- Nelson, S. M., and S. A. Flickinger. 1992. Salinity tolerance of colorado squawfish. *Hydrobiologia* 246: 162-168.
- Newton, Virginia. 1999. An Overview of Native American Land Use in East Central Utah, Grand, Emery, Carbon, Sanpete, and Utah Counties: The Aspen Products Pipeline Project. Cultural Resources Report No. 99-24. SWCA Environmental Consultants, Salt Lake City.
- Office of Pipeline Safety. 2005. Office of Pipeline Safety [internet website]. Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, Washington, D.C. [Last Accessed June 20, 2007]. Available at http://ops.dot.gov/.
- Olff, H., and M. E. Ritchie. 1998. Effects of herbivores on grassland plant diversity. *TREE* 13(7):261-265.

Oliver, George V. 2000. The Bats of Utah: A Literature Review. UDWR Publication 00-14. Utah Natural Heritage Program, Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.

- Parker, J. M. 1981. Lisbon Field Area, San Juan County, Utah. In *Geology of the Paradox Basin*, edited by D. L. Wiegand, pp. 89-100. 1981 Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists Field Conference. Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists, Denver, Colorado.
- Parker, Patricia L., and Thomas F. King. 1989. Guidelines for Evaluating and Documenting Traditional Cultural Properties. National Register 38. National Park Service, Interagency Resources Division, Washington, D.C.
- Parrish, J. R., F. P. Howe, and R. Norvell. 2002. The Utah avian conservation strategy, version 2.0. UDWR Publication No. 02-27. Utah Partners in Flight Program, Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- Patterson, Charles G. 1989. Mineral Resources of the Indian Creek, Bridger Jack Mesa, and Butler Wash Wilderness Study Areas, San Juan County, Utah. U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1754. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- Perlman, Susan E. 1998. Traditional Cultural Properties Survey of the Mid-America Pipeline Company's Proposed Rocky Mountain Expansion Project, Northwestern New Mexico, Western Colorado, and Eastern Utah. Cultural Resource Report 98-163. SWCA Environmental Consultants, Albuquerque.
- Pettit, Jan. 1990. Utes: The Mountain People. Boulder: Johnson Books.
- Piemeisel, R. L. 1951. Causes affecting change and rate of change in vegetation of annuals in Idaho. *Ecology* 32:53-72.
- Popolizio, C. A., H. Goetz, and P. L. Chapman. 1994. Short-term response of riparian vegetation to four grazing treatments. *Journal of Rangeland Management* 47: 48-53.
- Reed, Henry E. 1996. Limestone Exploration in the Paradox Basin. In *Geology and Resources of the Paradox Basin*, 1996 Special Symposium Guidebook 25. Utah Geological Association, Salt Lake City, and Four Corners Geological Society, Durango, Colorado.
- Reijnen, R., and R. Foppen. 1994. The effects of car traffic on breeding bird populations in woodland, 1: Evidence of reduced habitat quality for willow warblers breeding close to a highway. *Journal of Applied Ecology* 31: 85-94.
- Reiter, D., and D. Blahna. 2001. Utah River Study Results Report: Recreational Use, Value, and Experience of Boaters on Rivers Managed by the BLM in Utah. Institute for Outdoor Recreation and Tourism, Utah State University, Logan.
- Reiter, D., D. Blahna, and R. Von Koch. 1998. Off-highway Vehicle Four-wheeler Survey: A Summary Report of 1997 Moab Easter Jeep Safari Participants. Institute for Outdoor Recreation and Tourism, Utah State University, Logan.
- Roberts & Schaefer. 1996. Executive Report of the Revision to the Final Feasibility Study for the Lisbon Valley Copper Project Located in Lisbon Valley, Utah. Prepared by Roberts & Schaefer. Prepared for Summo USA Corporation.

Romin, L. A., and J. A. Muck. 2002. Utah Field Office Guidelines for Raptor Protection from Human and Land Use Disturbances. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Utah Field Office, Salt Lake City.

- Saab, V. A., C. E. Bock, T. D. Rich, and D. S. Dobkin. 1995. Livestock grazing effects in western North America. In *Ecology and Management of Neotropical Migratory Birds: A Synthesis and Review of Critical Issues*, edited by T. E. Martin and D. M. Finch, 311-353. London: Oxford University Press.
- San Juan County. 1996. San Juan County Master Plan. Prepared by San Juan County, Monticello, Utah.
- Sarr, D., R. A. Knapp, J. Owens, T. Balser, and T. Dudley. 1996. Ecosystem recovery from livestock grazing in the southern Sierra Nevada. Aldo Leopold Wilderness Research Institute, Missoula, Montana.
- Sawyer, H., R. Neilson, and L. McDonald. 2006a. Sublette Mule Deer Study (Phase II): Long-term Monitoring Plan to Assess Potential Impacts of Energy Development on Mule Deer in the Pinedale Anticline Project Area, 2006 Annual Report. Western Ecosystems Technology, Inc., Cheyenne, Wyoming.
- Sawyer, H., R. M. Neilson, F. Lindzey, and L. L. McDonald. 2006b. Winter habitat selection of mule deer before and during development of a natural gas field. *Journal of Wildlife Management* 70:396-403.
- Schroedl, A. 1991. Paleo-Indian Occupation in the Eastern Great Basin and Northern Colorado Plateau. *Utah Archaeology* 4(1):1-15.
- Seal, Franklin. 2002. Local prospector eyes humate mine near Crescent Junction, takes out lease from SITLA. *Moab Times-Independent*, p. A1-A2.
- Seidel, J. W. 1977. Elk calving behavior in west central Colorado. In *Proceedings of the Western States Elk Workshop*, pp. 38-40. Colorado Division of Wildlife, Denver.
- Shackleton, D. M., C. C. Shank, and B. M. Wikeem. 1999. Natural History of Rocky Mountain and California Bighorn Sheep. In *Mountain Sheep of North America*, edited by R. Valdez and P. R. Krausman, pp. 78-138. Tucson: University of Arizona Press.
- Shubat, M. A., B. T. Tripp, C. E. Bishop, and R. E. Blackett. 1991. Mines and Prospects Containing Gold in Utah. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey Open-File Report 207. Utah Geological and Mineral Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Singer, F. J., L. C. Zeigenfuss, and L. Spicer. 2001. Role of patch size, disease, and movement in rapid extinction in bighorn sheep. *Conservation Biology* 15(5):1347–1354.
- Sogge, M. K., R. M. Marshall, S. J. Sferra, and T. J. Tibbitts. 1997. A Southwestern Willow Flycatcher Natural History Summary and Survey Protocol. Technical Report NPS/NAUCPRS/NRTR-97/12. U.S. Geological Survey Biological Resources Division, Colorado Plateau Field Station, Northern Arizona University, Flagstaff.
- Sonoran Institute. 2003. Population, Employment, Earnings and Personal Income Trends: San Juan County, Utah. Sonoran Institute, Tucson, Arizona. April.

Sonoran Institute. 2005. Socioeconomic Profile: San Juan County Utah. Economic Profile System Community, Sonoran Institute, Tucson, Arizona. December.

- Spangler, Jerry D. 1995. Paradigms & Perspectives: A Class I Overview of Cultural Resources in the Uinta Basin and Tavaputs Plateau. Uinta Research, Salt Lake City.
- Sprinkel, D. A. 1999. Digital Geologic Resources Atlas of Utah. Bulletin 129DF. Utah Geological Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Squires, J. R., and R. T. Reynolds. 1997. Northern Goshawk (*Accipiter gentilis*). In *The Birds of North America*, No. 298, edited by A. Poole and F. Gills. The Academy of Natural Sciences, Philadelphia, and the American Ornithologists' Union, Washington, D.C.
- Stevens, R. 2004. Incorporating wildlife habitat needs into restoration and rehabilitation projects. In *Restoring Western Ranges and Wildlands*, edited by S. B. Monsen, R. Stevens, and N. L. Shaw, 155-174. General Technical Report RMRS-GTR-136-VOL-1. USDA Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station, Fort Collins, Colorado.
- Stiver, S. J., A. D. Apa, J. R. Bohne, S. D. Bunnell, P. A. Deibert, S. C. Gardner, M. A. Hilliard, C. W. McCarthy, and M. A. Schroeder. 2006. Greater Sage-grouse Comprehensive Conservation Strategy. Western Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies, Cheyenne, Wyoming. December.
- Stokowski, P. A., and C. LaPointe. 2000. Environmental and Social Effects of ATVs and ORVs: An Annotated Bibliography and Research Assessment. School of Natural Resources, University of Vermont, Burlington.
- Swarthout, E. C. H., and R. J. Steidl. 2003. Experimental effects of hiking on breeding Mexican spotted owls. *Conservation Biology* 17(1): 307-315.
- The Wilderness Society (TWC). 2004. The Economic Benefits of Wilderness: Focus on Property Value Enhancement. Ecology and Economics Research Department, The Wilderness Society, Washington, D.C. March.
- Trimble, S. W., and A. C. Mendel. 1995. The cow as a geomorphic agent: A critical review. *Geomorphology* 13: 233-253.
- Trinity Consultants (Trinity). 2003. 1996 Mesoscale Model (MM5) data processed using the CALMET meteorological model. Trinity Consultants, Phoenix.
- Trinity Consultants (Trinity), and Craig Nicholls. 2006. Air Quality Assessment Report Vernal and Glenwood Springs Resource Management Plans. Trinity Consultants, Phoenix. August.
- U.S. Census Bureau. 2000. Census of Population [online database]. U.S. Census Bureau, Washington, D.C. [Accessed December 22, 2005]. Available at http://www.census.gov/main/www/cen2000.html.
- U.S. Census Bureau. 2005. Poverty [online database]. U.S. Census Bureau, Washington, D.C. [Accessed December 22, 2005]. Available at http://www.census.gov/hhes/www/poverty/poverty.html.

U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA). 2002. 2002 Census of Agriculture [online database]. National Agricultural Statistics Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://www.nass.usda.gov/Census\_of\_Agriculture/index.asp.

- USDA, Forest Service (USFS). 1986. Land and Resource Management Plan, Manti-La Sal National Forest. USDA Forest Service, Manti-La Sal National Forest, Price, Utah.
- USFS. 1992. Recommended Old-Growth Definitions and Descriptions and Old-Growth Allocation Procedure. USDA Forest Service, Southwestern Region, Albuquerque, New Mexico. September.
- USFS. 1993. Characteristics of Old-growth Forests in the Intermountain Region. USDA Forest Service, Intermountain Region, Ogden, Utah. April.
- USFS. 1996. Potential fossil yield classification (PFYC). Paleontology Center of Excellence and the Region 2 Paleo Initiative, USDA Forest Service, Washington, D.C.
- USFS, BLM, and NPS. 1996. Wild and Scenic River Review in the State of Utah, Process and Criteria for Interagency Use. Available at Bureau of Land Management, Utah State Office, Salt Lake City.
- U.S. Department of the Interior (USDI). 2005. Payment In Lieu of Taxes: County Payments and Acres [online database]. U.S. Department of the Interior. [Accessed December 22, 2005]. Available at http://www.nbc.gov/pilt/search.cfm#search.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 1983. Northern States Bald Eagle Recovery Plan. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Denver.
- USFWS. 1987. Environmental Assessment for the Upper Colorado River Endangered Fish Recovery Program. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Upper Colorado River Endangered Fish Recovery Program, Lakewood, Colorado.
- USFWS. 1988. Black-footed Ferret Recovery Plan. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Denver.
- USFWS. 1990a. Humpback Chub (*Gila cypha*) Recovery Plan, 2nd Revised. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Denver.
- USFWS. 1990b. Bonytail Chub Recovery Plan. Prepared by the Colorado River Fishes Recovery Team, Denver. Prepared for Region 6, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, D.C.
- USFWS. 1991. Colorado Pikeminnow Recovery Plan. Prepared by the Colorado River Fishes Recovery Team, Denver. Prepared for Region 6, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, D.C.
- USFWS. 1995. Mexican Spotted Owl (*Strix occidentalis lucida*) Recovery Plan. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Denver.
- USFWS. 1999. Razorback Sucker Recovery Plan. Prepared by the Colorado River Fishes Recovery Team, Denver. Prepared for Region 6, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, D.C.

USFWS. 2002a. Colorado Pikeminnow (*Ptychocheilus lucius*) Recovery Plan (Amendment and Supplement for Recovery Goals), Final Revision 2. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Utah Field Office, Salt Lake City.

- USFWS. 2002b. Humpback Chub (*Gila cypha*) Recovery Goals: amendment and supplement to the Humpback Chub Recovery Plan. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Mountain-Prairie Region (6), Denver, Colorado.
- USFWS. 2002c. Bonytail (*Gila elegans*) Recovery Goals, Amendment and Supplement to the Bonytail Chub Recovery Plan, Final Revision 2. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Denver.
- USFWS. 2002d. Razorback Sucker (*Xyrauchen fexanus*) Recovery Plan, Amendment and Supplement for Recovery Goals, Final Revision 1. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Denver.
- USFWS. 2002e. Final Recovery Plan for the Southwestern Willow Flycatcher (*Empidonax traillii extimus*). U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Albuquerque.
- USFWS. 2002f. Birds of Conservation Concern, 2002. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Division of Migratory Bird Management, Arlington, Virginia.
- USFWS. 2005. Designation of Critical Habitat for the Southwestern Willow Flycatcher (*Empidonax traillii extimus*). U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, D.C.
- U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). 2003. Petroleum Systems and Geologic Assessment of Oil and Gas in the Uinta-Piceance Province, Utah and Colorado. Compiled by Uinta-Piceance Assessment Team. U.S. Geological Survey Digital Data Series DDS-69-B. U.S. Geological Survey, Washington, D.C.
- U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), 2007. Environmental Effects of Off-Highway Vehicles on Bureau of Land Management Lands: A Literature Synthesis, Annotated Bibliographies, Extensive Bibliographies and Internet Resources.
- University of Utah, 2008. The Structure and Economic Impact of Utah's Oil and Gas Exploration Industry Phase III Grand County. Bureau of Economic and Business Research.
- Utah Department of Environmental Quality (UDEQ). 2001. Utah's Non-Point Source Management Plan [online publication]. Utah Department of Environmental Quality, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://www.waterquality.utah.gov/documents/NPS\_Mgmt\_Plan\_2001.pdf.
- UDEQ. 2002. Utah's 2002 303(d) List of Waters. Utah Department of Environmental Quality, Salt Lake City.
- Utah Department of Workforce Services (UDWS). 2005. Grand County: Demographic and Economic Profile [online database]. Utah Department of Workforce Services, Salt Lake City. [Accessed August 2005]. Available at http://jobs.utah.gov/.

Utah Division of Air Quality and Environmental Protection Agency (UDAQ and EPA). 2006. US EPA Air Data Mapping and Emissions Tool, Nonattainment Areas Maps for Utah [online database]. Utah Division of Air Quality, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://www.airmonitoring.utah.gov/ and http://www.epa.gov/air/data/nonat.html?st%7EUT%7EUtah.

- UDOGM. 2008. Data Research Center [online database]. Utah Division of Oil Gas and Mining. Available at http://oilgas.ogm.utah.gov/Data\_Center/DataCenter.cfm#production
- Utah Division of Oil Gas and Mining (UDOGM). 2002. Map of Abandoned Mine Sites within Grand County [online database]. Abandoned Mine Reclamation Program, Utah Division of Oil, Gas, and Mining, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 15, 2007]. Available at http://www.ogm.utah.gov.
- UDOGM. 2004. December 2003 Production Book [online publication]. Utah Division of Oil Gas and Mining. [Accessed January 2004]. Available at http://ogm.utah.gov/oilgas/PUBLICATIONS/Reports/2003\_prd/book1203.htm.
- Utah Division of Travel Development (UDTD). 2004. 2004 State and County Economic Travel Indicator Profiles. Utah Division of Travel Development, Salt Lake City.
- Utah Division of Water Resources (UDWRe). 2000. Utah State Water Plan, Southeast Colorado River Basin. Utah Division of Water Resources, Salt Lake City.
- Utah Division of Water Rights (UDWRi). 2003. Water Use Records Application [application download]. Utah Division of Water Rights, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://waterrights.utah.gov/cgi-bin/wuseview.exe.
- Utah Division of Wildlife Resources (UDWR). 1985a. Cisco Desert Habitat Management Plan. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR. 1985b. Hatch Point Habitat Management Plan. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR. 1985c. Dolores Triangle Habitat Management Plan. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR. 1986. The Potash-Confluence Habitat Management Plan. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR. 1999. Statewide Management Plan for Bighorn Sheep. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR. 2000a. Utah Upland Game Annual Report, 1999. Publication 00-27. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR. 2000b. Utah Black Bear Management Plan. Publication 00-23. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City. June 27.
- UDWR. 2002. Strategic Management Plan for Sage-grouse. Publication 02-20. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City. June.

UDWR. 2005a. Utah Comprehensive Wildlife Conservation Strategy. Publication Number 05-19. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City. September.

- UDWR. 2005b. Utah Sensitive Species List. Unpublished document, Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR. 2006. Utah Big Game Annual Report, 2005. Publication 06-21. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources, Salt Lake City.
- UDWR, 2007. Aerial Survey Counts (Pronghorn). Utah Division of Wildlife Resources. Salt Lake City.
- UDWR, 2007. Utah Bighorn Sheep State-wide Management Plan. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources. Salt Lake City.
- UDWR, 2008. 2008 Antlerless Deer Permit Summary and Recommendations. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources. Salt Lake City.
- UDWR, 2008. 2008 Antlerless Elk Permit Summary and Recommendations. Utah Division of Wildlife Resources. Salt Lake City.
- Utah Geological and Mineralogical Survey (UGMS). 1966. Gold Placers in Utah A Compilation. Utah Geological and Mineralogical Survey Circular 47. Utah Geological and Mineralogical Survey, Salt Lake City.
- Utah Geological Society (UGS). 2003. Maps [online database]. Utah Geological Survey, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Located at http://www.ugs.state.ut.us/maps/index.htm.
- Utah Native Plant Society. 2005. Utah Rare Plant Guide [online database]. Utah Native Plant Society, Salt Lake City. [Last Accessed June 15, 2007]. Available at http://www.utahrareplants.org/rpg\_species.html.
- Utah State Governor's Office of Planning and Budget (GOPB). 2001. Cities and Counties of Utah: First in a Series of Census 2000 Analyses [online publication]. Utah State Governor's Office of Planning and Budget, Salt Lake City. [Accessed April 2002]. Available at http://www.governor.state.ut.us/dea/ccBrief3.pdf.
- GOPB. 2002. Race and Ethnicity in Utah: Third in a Series of Census 2000 Analyses [online publication]. Utah State Governor's Office of Planning and Budget, Salt Lake City. [Accessed April 2002]. Available at http://governor.utah.gov/dea/Minorities.pdf
- Venturoni, L., P. Long, and R. Perdue. 2005. The Economic and Social Impacts of Second Homes in Four Mountain Resort Counties of Colorado. 2005 Annual Meeting of the Association of American Geographers, Denver, April 7.
- Walcek, C. J. 2002. Effects of wind shear on pollution dispersion. *Atmospheric Environment* 36: 511–517.
- Welsh, S. L., N. D. Atwood, S. Goodrich, and L. C. Higgins. 2003. *A Utah Flora*, Third Edition, revised. Provo, Utah: Brigham Young University.

Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC). 2004. Temperature and precipitation for meteorological stations in Eastern Utah [online database]. Western Regional Climate Center, Desert Research Institute. [Last Accessed June 18, 2007]. Available at http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/index.html.

- Witkind, I. J. 2004. Geologic map of the Huntington 30' and 60' Quadrangle, Carbon, Emery, Grand, and Uintah Counties, Utah. Utah Geological Survey Open File Report 440DM. 5 sheets (scale 1:100,000).
- World Climate. 2003. Climate data for Moab, Grand County, Utah and Monticello, San Juan County, Utah [online database]. World Climate. [Last Accessed June 19, 2007]. Available at http://www.worldclimate.com/.
- Zeveloff, S., and F. Collett. 1988. *Mammals of the Intermountain West*. Salt Lake City: University of Utah Press.

## THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK